
Above: Map of suggested provinces and states to form DIAGOLON. 

A0823828_3-005755



PLAID ARMY 

The “PLAID ARMY” was an online streaming-based channel produced by a network of content creators. 

PLAID ARMY content was often criticized for promoting views which some may interpret as offensive 

and has been banned multiple times across platforms. Creators within the former PLAID ARMY website 

include the “RAGING HUMANIST” (Jeremy MACKENZIE), “DEREK RANTS” (Derek HARRISON), 

The PLAID ARMY website (plaidarmy.com) is 

no longer active. The content creators listed above continue to produce online content and at times 

have promoted DIAGOLON. MACKENZIE, HARRISON, have 

posted about their attendance at convoy events in Ottawa. 

Above: PLAID ARMY logo 
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Scott, Matthew 

From: Chen, Ashley 

Sent: May 20, 2022 3:49 PM 

To: Caron, Eliane 

Cec: Ducharme, Lisa 

Subject: RE: FPNI IMCIT Intelligence Assessment - DIAGOLON 

Hello Eliane, 

Just wondering if you have had a chance to review this product yet. 

We are hoping to share this today if you approve. 

Apologies for the tight deadline. If there are any issues, please let me know. 

Thank you, 

Ashley 

From: Chen, Ashley 

Sent: May 20, 2022 9:17 AM 

To: Caron, Eliane <Eliane.Caron@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Mendonca, Walter <walter.mendonca@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Cc: Duheme, Michael <Michael.Duheme@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Flynn, Mark <mark.flynn@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Poloz, Adriana 

<adriana.poloz@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Efford, Sue <Sue.Efford@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Hanniman, Krista <Krista.Hanniman@rcmp- 

grc.gc.ca>; Ducharme, Lisa <Lisa.Ducharme@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; O'Hayon, Greg <Greg.OHayon@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; 

Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawiec@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Piamonte, Kandi <kandi.piamonte@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Lai, Anna 

<Anna.Lai@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Clarkin, Danielle <danielle.clarkin@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Subject: FPNI IMCIT Intelligence Assessment - DIAGOLON 

Good morning Eliane and Walter, 

Please see attached IMCIT’s Intelligence Assessment on DIAGOLON in response to a FPNS request for assessment. 

Should there be any questions, please feel free to reach out to FPNI IMCIT, or contact the product author (Kandi 

Piamonte, cc’d) directly. 

Thank you, 

Ashley Chen 

Intelligence Analyst / Analyste de renseignements 

Ideologically Motivated Criminal Intelligence Team (IMCIT) 

National Intelligence / Centre national du renseignement 

Federal Policing / Police fédérale 

Royal Canadian Mounted Police / Gendarmerie royale du Canada 

Ashley.Chen@rcmp-grc.gc.ca 

343-574-1451 
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Scott, Matthew 

From: Chen, Ashley 

Sent: June 24, 2022 10:14 AM 

To: Morawiec, Garrett 

Subject: RE: . 

Attachments: RCMP FPNI IMCIT - STA 2022-15 - Canada Day - FINAL - 240622 - PA AC.docx 

Does this work? Added a sentence and modified the highlighted one. 

From: Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawiec@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Sent: June 24, 2022 9:58 AM 

To: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Cchen@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Subject: . 

Garrett Morawiec 

RCMP IMCIT A/Manager 

D: 613.843.6075 

BB: 613.240.0290 

73 Leikin, M3-04-306 

Mailstop 157 

Ottawa, K1AOR2 
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Scott, Matthew 

From: Chen, Ashley 

Sent: January 13, 2022 11:43 AM 

To: Little, Kristen; Kruk, James 

Subject: RE: Briefing Accelerationism 

I’m on it now. Lots of groups mentioned that we already know. Some emerging groups like Diagolon and QAnon 

networks are mentioned. | appreciated the background info about early accelerationist influence that cites time as a 

degrading concept and requiring a social reset (from Kali Yuga, Evola). 

Q&A Sesh is starting now — anything you want to ask? 

From: Little, Kristen <kristen.little@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Sent: January 13, 2022 11:41 AM 

To: Kruk, James <James.Kruk@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Cchen@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Subject: Briefing Accelerationism 

Did either of you attend it at 11? | got distracted editing something for G and totally forgot to join it 

If you attended was it anything we don’t already know? 
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Scott, Matthew 

From: Chen, Ashley 

Sent: September 8, 2021 9:14 AM 

To: Little, Kristen 

Subject: RE: Diagolon 

| haven’t heard of ol’ slashy yet but definitely sounds on brand for them. Not sure if you'd seen pics, but sometimes they 

post photos of their meetups and their hand gesture is an arm raised diagonally. Like if you took your arm, bent at the 

elbow, in front of you, and pointed it 45 degrees upwards. (but not raised with the whole arm like the Sieg Heil) 

Am pretty sure this whole Diagolon thing started as a meme but they write about trying to “meme” things into reality, 

hence the Diagolon flag showing up at IRL events. 

From: Little, Kristen <kristen.little@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Sent: September 8, 2021 9:09 AM 

To: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Cchen@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Subject: RE: Diagolon 

Perfect stay tuned 

Have you ever seen them refer to it as “old slashy”? 

In one of the bigots group | saw that verbiage and it makes me think they are bringing those flags to the 

protest. If not, do you think that’s a safe inference? Context is “Ol’ Slashy will be there waving proudly in defiance” 

From: Chen, Ashley <Ashiey.Chen@remp-gre.ge.ca> 

Sent: September 8, 2021 9:08 AM 

To: Little, Kristen <kristen.little@rcmp-gre.g¢.ca> 

Subject: FW: Diagolon 

Here ya go © 

From: Little, Kristen <kristen.little@rcmp-gre.gc.ca> 

Sent: July 14, 2021 8:50 AM 

To: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Chen@rcmp-gre.gc.ca> 

Subject: RE: Diagolon 

Hey Ash! 

The channels are REMVE + Conspiracy theorist in nature but not accelerationist and 

you’re right no incitement of violence. Some of the usernames have racist references/photos in them but no criminality. 

Based on the content on the channels it looks like the main grievance is the perception of a “plandemic” and gov't 

control. There is likely some overlap with individuals/groups already on other social media platforms. 

Hope this helps and you have a great day! 
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Kristen 

From: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Chen@rcmp-gre.ge.ca> 

Sent: July 13, 2021 12:01 PM 

To: Little, Kristen <kristen.little@rcmp-gre.ge.ca> 

Subject: Diagolon 

Hey KL, 

Passing along some info and would love your insight (when you’re done your course!!). 

| came across this new group/concept by looking at that that made the comment about having 

security at the Freedom Rally for Canada Day. The concept of “Diagolon” appears to be based on a hypothetical 

separation of a select number of US states and Canadian provinces which identify as “freedom-loving” into its own 

country. | think most of this is hypothetical, satirical, maybe a little bit tongue-in-cheek or doing it for the memes. 

| watched the user’s YT video on it and he states he is trying to rally like-minded people together. Note that 

the groups are self-named as “bigot” groups. | do not see overt incitement of violence or hatred. 

Ash 

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

Sent: February 22, 2022 2:23 PM 

To: Morawiec, Garrett; Kruk, James; Little, Kristen; Piamonte, Kandi 

Subject: RE: FPNI - DIAGOLON - INDICATORS OF MOBILIZATION TO TERRORISM ASSESSMENT 

Saved here for reference: 

R:\NHQ\NI-NICC\IMCIT\2 - OPERATIONS\2022\ Intelligence Files\DIAGOLON 

From: Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawiec@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Sent: February 22, 2022 2:20 PM 

To: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Cchen@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Kruk, James <James.Kruk@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Little, Kristen 

<kristen.little@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Piamonte, Kandi <kandi.piamonte@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Subject: RE: FPNI - DIAGOLON - INDICATORS OF MOBILIZATION TO TERRORISM ASSESSMENT - 

Yup, please do! 

From: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Chen@remp-gre.gc.ca> 

Sent: February 22, 2022 2:18 PM 

To: Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawiec@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Kruk, James <James, Kruk@remp-gre.gc.ca>; Little, Kristen 

<kristen.little@remp-grc.gc.ca>; Piamonte, Kandi <kandi.piamonte@rcmp-gre.ge.ca> 

Subject: RE: FPNI - DIAGOLON - INDICATORS OF MOBILIZATION TO TERRORISM ASSESSMENT - 

This looks great! Can | save it on the shared drive ? 

From: Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawiec@remp-gre.ge.ca> 

Sent: February 22, 2022 10:55 AM 

To: Chen, Ashley <Ashley.Chen@rcmp-grc.ge.ca>; Kruk, James <James.Kruk@rcemp-gre.gc.ca>; Little, Kristen 

<kristen.little@remp-gre.gc.ca>; Piamonte, Kandi <kandi.piamonte@remp-gre.ge.ca> 

Subject: FW: FPNI - DIAGOLON - INDICATORS OF MOBILIZATION TO TERRORISM ASSESSMENT - 

Trying to get caught up, this was the PRO A product as a result of the chart. 

From: Morawiec, Garrett 

Sent: February 18, 2022 7:04 PM 

To: Harvey, Sandy <Sandy.Harvey@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Rusk, Melissa <Melissa.Rusk@remp-gre.gc.ca>; Vinette, Nathalie 

<Nathalie.Vinette@rcmp-gre.gc.ca>; Bouchard, Annie <Annie.Bouchard@rcmp-gre.gc.ca> 

Cc: Ducharme, Lisa <Lisa.Ducharme@rcmp-gre.gc.ca>; Poloz, Adriana <adriana.poloz@remp-gre.gc.ca> 

Subject: FPNI - DIAGOLON - INDICATORS OF MOBILIZATION TO TERRORISM ASSESSMENT - 

Evening, 

Please find attached DIAGOLON - INDICATORS OF MOBILIZATION TO TERRORISM ASSESSMENT 

Releasable to all LE. 
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Garrett 

Garrett Morawiec 

RCMP IMCIT Supervisor 

D: 613.843.6075 

BB: 613.240.0290 

73 Leikin, M3-04-306 

Mailstop 157 

Ottawa, K1AOR2 
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Scott, Matthew 

From: Chen, Ashley 

Sent: June 29, 2022 4:13 PM 

To: Ducharme, Lisa 

Subject: RE: IMCIT STA 

Attachments: RCMP FPNI IMCIT - STA 2022-15 - Canada Day - FINAL - 240622 - REL FVEY.pdf 

Hi Lisa, please see attached the FVEY version of IMCIT STA 2022-15 with external references removed. 

From: Ducharme, Lisa <Lisa.Ducharme@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Sent: June 29, 2022 3:35 PM 

To: Price, Liam <Liam.Price@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; FPNI IMCIT / PFRN ERCCI <FPNI_IMCIT-PFRN_ERCCI@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Cc: Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawiec@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Moreau, Brian <Brian.Moreau@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>; Chen, 

Ashley <Ashley.Cchen@rcmp-grc.gc.ca> 

Subject: RE: IMCIT STA 

Hi Liam, we’re onit. Also coming out with an NTL tomorrow. We'll ask for it to be approved for release to FVEYs as 

well. 

Cheers, Lisa 

From: Price, Liam <Liam.Price@rcemp-gre.ge.ca> 

Sent: June 29, 2022 3:33 PM 

To: FPNI IMCIT / PFRN ERCCI <FPNI_IMCIT-PERN ERCCI@remp-gre.ge.ca> 

Cc: Morawiec, Garrett <Garrett.Morawie ‘cmp-grc.gc.ca>; Moreau, Brian <Brian. Woreau@rcemp-gre.ge.ca>; 

Ducharme, Lisa <Lisa. Ducharme C.ca> 

Subject: IMCIT STA 

Hi- 

Is there a FVEY releasable version of IMCIT STA 2022-15 (or a more recent one)? 

Just thinking that the allies may want/be interested in a version if Canada Day kicks off. 

Thanks in advance. 

LP 

Director General | Directeur Général 

International 
RCMP | GRC 
73 Leikin Drive, Ottawa, ON 

K1A OR2 - Mailstop #70 

O: 343-547-2544 
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C: 343-575-4962 

UNCLASS: Liam.price@rcmp-gre.gc.ca 

[Secure email available] 

*** The RCMP has two 24/7 Contact Points for international assistance *** 

(1) RCMP. International-International.GRC@rcmp-grc.gc.ca: for the RCMP’s overseas network and the RCMP’s national 

gateway for international requests for assistance 

(2) ipottawa@remp-gre.ge.ca: INTERPOL Ottawa - for International Law Enforcement assistance via the INTERPOL / 

EUROPOL Network 

A0823844_2-005812



�S�c�o�t�t�,� �M�a�t�t�h�e�w� 

�F�r�o�m�:� �C�h�e�n�,� �A�s�h�l�e�y� 
�S�e�n�t�:� �A�p�r�i�l� �7�,� �2�0�2�2� �3�:�2�0� �P�M� 

�T�o�:� �K�r�u�k�,� �J�a�m�e�s� 
�C�e�c�:� �L�i�t�t�l�e�,� �K�r�i�s�t�e�n� 
�S�u�b�j�e�c�t�:� �R�E�:� �M�e�d�i�a� �S�c�a�n� �-� �7� �A�p�r�i�l� �2�0�2�2� 

�S�o�m�e� �h�i�g�h�l�i�g�h�t�s�:� 
�e� �C�a�n�a�d�a� �F�i�r�s�t� �(�C�F�)� �t�a�l�k�s� �a�b�o�u�t� �a�t�t�e�n�d�i�n�g� �t�h�e� �c�o�n�v�o�y� �p�r�o�t�e�s�t� �i�n� �O�t�t�a�w�a�:� �G�o�o�d� �v�i�b�e�s�,� �g�o�o�d� �s�p�e�e�c�h�e�s�,� �b�i�g� �c�r�o�w�d�s�.� 

�C�a�n�a�d�a� �i�s� �f�*�c�k�e�d� �d�u�e� �t�o�  ��B�i�l�l� �1�0�0 �� �a�b�o�u�t� �t�h�e� �g�o�v�e�r�n�m�e�n�t�'�s� �a�l�l�e�g�e�d� �a�u�t�h�o�r�i�t�y� �t�o� �s�e�i�z�e� �a�s�s�e�t�s� �o�f� �p�r�o�t�e�s�t�e�r�s�.� 
�e� �T�h�e�y� �d�i�s�c�u�s�s� �o�t�h�e�r� �p�r�o�m�i�n�e�n�t� �p�r�o�t�e�s�t�e�r�s� �t�h�e�r�e� �w�h�o� �h�a�d� �i�n�t�e�r�a�c�t�i�o�n�s� �w�i�t�h� �p�o�l�i�c�e� �(�t�h�e� �F�r�o�n�t�e�n�a�c�-�L�a�n�a�r�k� �M�P�P�,� 

�D�i�a�g�o�l�o�n� �l�e�a�d�e�r�)� �t�o� �c�o�n�c�l�u�d�e� �t�h�a�t�  ��C�a�n�a�d�a� �i�s� �n�o�t� �f�r�e�e� �a�n�y�m�o�r�e ��.� 
�e� �C�F� �c�o�n�f�i�r�m�s� �h�e� �w�i�l�l� �b�e�  ��b�a�c�k� �i�n� �O�t�t�a�w�a� �o�n�e� �d�a�y ��  �� �n�o�t�h�i�n�g� �s�p�e�c�i�f�i�c�.� 
�e� �T�h�e� �r�e�s�t� �i�s� �j�u�s�t� �b�a�n�t�e�r� �(�r�i�s�i�n�g� �i�n�f�l�a�t�i�o�n�,� �b�u�t� �n�o�t�h�i�n�g� �p�o�l�i�t�i�c�a�l�)� �a�n�d� �r�e�s�p�o�n�d�i�n�g� �t�o� �l�i�v�e�s�t�r�e�a�m� �c�h�a�t�s�.� 

�F�r�o�m�:� �K�r�u�k�,� �J�a�m�e�s� �<�J�a�m�e�s�.�K�r�u�k�@�r�c�m�p�-�g�r�c�.�g�c�.�c�a�>� 
�S�e�n�t�:� �A�p�r�i�l� �7�,� �2�0�2�2� �1�2�:�1�4� �P�M� 
�T�o�:� �C�h�e�n�,� �A�s�h�l�e�y� �<�A�s�h�l�e�y�.�C�h�e�n�@�r�c�m�p�-�g�r�c�.�g�c�.�c�a�>� 

�S�u�b�j�e�c�t�:� �R�E�:� �M�e�d�i�a� �S�c�a�n� �-� �7� �A�p�r�i�l� �2�0�2�2� 

�R�e�:� �t�h�e� �A�m�e�r�i�c�a� �F�i�r�s�t� �l�i�v�e�s�t�r�e�a�m�,� �|� �t�h�i�n�k� �y�o�u� �c�a�n� �f�i�n�d� �a�n� �a�r�c�h�i�v�e�d� �v�e�r�s�i�o�n� �o�f� �i�t� �a�t� 
�C�c� �a�l�t�o�n�c�l�o�d�f�e�l�t�e�r�/�r�e�p�l�a�y� �2�-�0�4�-�0�5� �2� 

�P�o�s�t�e�d� �o�n� �T�u�e�s�d�a�y�,� �A�p�r�i�l� �6� �a�t� �6�:�2�5� �P�M�.� 

�F�r�o�m�:� �C�h�e�n�,� �A�s�h�l�e�y� �<�A�s�h�l�e�y�.�C�h�e�n�@�r�e�m�p�-�g�r�e�.�g�e�.�c�a�>� 

�S�e�n�t�:� �A�p�r�i�l� �7�,� �2�0�2�2� �1�2�:�0�4� �P�M� 
�T�o�:� �K�r�u�k�,� �J�a�m�e�s� �<�J�a�m�e�s�.�K�r�u�k�@�r�e�m�p�-�g�r�e�.�g�c�.�c�a�>�;� �M�o�r�a�w�i�e�c�,� �G�a�r�r�e�t�t� �<�G�a�r�r�e�t�t�.� �M�o�r�a�w�i�e�c�@�r�c�m�p�-�g�r�e�.�g�e�.�c�a�>�;� �L�i�t�t�l�e�,� �K�r�i�s�t�e�n� 

�<�k�r�i�s�t�e�n�.�l�i�t�t�l�e�@�r�e�m�p�-�g�r�c�.�g�c�.�c�a�>�;� �L�a�r�s�o�n�,� �N�a�t�h�a�n� �<�N�a�t�h�a�n�,�L�a�r�s�o�n�@�r�c�m�p�-�g�r�e�.�g�c�.�c�a�>�;� �P�i�a�m�o�n�t�e�,� �K�a�n�d�i� 
�<�k�a�n�d�i�.�p�i�a�m�o�n�t�e�@�r�c�e�m�p�-�g�r�c�.�g�c�.�c�a�>� 
�S�u�b�j�e�c�t�:� �R�E�:� �M�e�d�i�a� �S�c�a�n� �-� �7� �A�p�r�i�l� �2�0�2�2� 

�A�n�t�i�-�P�H�O�:� 
�e� �O�p�e�n� �s�o�u�r�c�e�:� �A� �f�e�w� �m�o�r�e� �c�o�n�v�o�y�/�s�l�o�w� �r�o�l�l�-�s�t�y�l�e� �p�r�o�t�e�s�t�s� �t�h�r�o�u�g�h�o�u�t� �O�n�t�a�r�i�o� �i�n� �A�p�r�i�l� �(�N�i�a�g�a�r�a�,� �O�r�i�l�l�i�a�,� �H�a�m�i�l�t�o�n�)� 

�f�l�a�g�g�e�d� �b�y� �J�a�m�e�s� �h�a�v�e� �b�e�e�n� �s�e�n�t� �t�o� �O�-�D�i�v� �a�n�d� �O�P�P�.� �N�o� �s�i�g�n�i�f�i�c�a�n�t� �u�p�d�a�t�e�s� �o�n� �t�h�e� �p�u�b�l�i�c� �o�r�d�e�r� �s�i�d�e�.� 
�T�R�U�C�K�E�R�S� �W�E�R�E� �R�I�G�H�T�:� �F�r�e�e�d�o�m� �C�o�n�v�o�y� �p�r�o�t�e�s�t� �w�a�s� �l�e�g�a�l�,� �j�u�d�g�e� �s�a�y�s�,� �a�n�d� �O�t�t�a�w�a� �i�s� �n�o�w� �b�e�i�n�g� �s�u�e�d� �|� 

�F�a�r�m�e�r�s�F�o�r�u�m�.�c�o�m� 
�®� �T�h�i�s� �a�b�o�v�e� �a�r�t�i�c�l�e� �c�l�a�i�m�s� �t�h�a�t� �a� �l�a�w�y�e�r� �f�o�r� �f�o�r�m�e�r� �N�L� �P�r�e�m�i�e�r� �i�s� �s�u�i�n�g� �t�h�e� �f�e�d�e�r�a�l� �g�o�v�e�r�n�m�e�n�t� �f�o�r� �b�r�e�a�c�h�i�n�g� 

�c�h�a�r�t�e�r� �r�i�g�h�t�s� �o�v�e�r� �t�h�e� �v�a�c�c�i�n�e� �m�a�n�d�a�t�e�s�,� �a�n�d� �t�h�a�t� �a�n� �O�N� �c�o�u�r�t� �j�u�d�g�e� �s�i�d�e�d� �w�i�t�h� �t�h�e� �c�o�n�v�o�y�,� �c�i�t�i�n�g� �:�  ��W�h�e�n� �a�n� 
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